
Adult Commissioning Committee 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and, unfortunately, you will 
not be able to attend them.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Wednesday, 13 May 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm via TEAMS

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 March 2020 (Pages 1 - 8)

ITEMS FOR DECISION 

4  Empower You Programme - Harry Golby/Tori Quinn (Pages 9 - 22)

5  Healthy Living Centres - Karen Proctor/Harry Golby (Pages 23 - 30)

ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE 

6  Finance Report - David Warhurst (Pages 31 - 44)

7  Verbal Update on Covid-19 - Gillian Mclauchlan 

8  Any Other Urgent Business 

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


9  Dates of Future Meetings 

Location or method of meetings to be confirmed in due course:

Wednesday 10 June 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 08 July 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 09 September 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 14 October 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 11 November 2020 at 14:00
Wednesday 13 January 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00
Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00

Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 1 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

MINUTES OF ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

11 March 2020, 15:00 – 16:47

SALFORD ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, CHORLEY ROAD, SWINTON, M25 5DA

Present:

Mr David Flinn (DF) Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Cllr Jane Hamilton (JaH) Executive Support for Social Care & Mental Health 

- SCC
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer - SCC
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH) Lead Member for Finance & Support Services       

– SCC
Dr David McKelvey (DMcK) Neighbourhood Lead – CCG
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning – CCG
Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and 

Wellbeing – SCC – Chair
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT) Medical Director – CCG – co-chair
Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation – CCG
Mr David Warhurst (DW) Chief Finance Officer - CCG

In Attendance:

Mr Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning – CCG
Mrs Gillian McLaughlan (GM) Deputy Director of Public Health – SCC
Ms Hillary Rothwell (HR) Senior Service Improvement Manager - CCG
Ms Carol Eddleston (CAE) Senior Democratic Services Advisor – SCC

Apologies:

Mr Steve Dixon (SC) Chief Accountable Officer – CCG
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Lead Member for Housing and Neighbourhoods - 

CCG
Dr Tom Regan (TR)  Clinical Director for Commissioning – CCG
Ms Claire Vaughan (CV) Head of Medicines Optimisation

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 2 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

1. Apologies and Declarations of Interest

a) Apologies

The above apologies were noted.

b) Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda.

GR took the opportunity to thank CCG colleagues for supporting the uplift to the Real 
Living Wage (£9.00/hr) for care workers from 1 October.

2. Minutes of the Last Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 February were approved as a correct record. 

3. Items for Decision

a) Adult Community Eating Disorders Service

JS presented an overview of the business case to support the Salford Community 
Eating Disorders Service which considered the following: Lack of commissioned 
capacity against presenting demand, changes to NICE guidance, investment within 
Children’s and Young People’s Services as part of 5 year Forward View investments, 
quality and provision of the service, benchmarking against other provision in GM, 
transition, Primary Care view and NHS Long Term Plan directive.

The business case outlined three options, with the third being the recommended 
option:
Option 1: do nothing – deemed not viable due to the high mortality rate of the 
population accessing the service and the current service pressures.
Option 2: increase capacity to meet demand and align with 18 week Referral to 
Treatment Time (RTT) timescales.
Option 3: increase capacity to meet demand and align with Children’s and Young 
People’s Services timescales (RTT urgent in one week or less, standard in four week 
or less).

Members of the ACC joined GR in commending the comprehensive report and 
acknowledging the need for sufferers of eating disorders to be seen in a timely 
manner.

It was confirmed that the provision of phlebotomy in options 2 and 3 was intended for 
the most complex cases, with GP practices still undertaking blood tests in less 
complex cases.

Page 2



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 3 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

The committee acknowledged that although group based therapy was more cost 
effective than one-to-one provision, it would not necessarily be suitable for every 
individual, especially early on in the pathway, however, it was hoped that, over time, 
individuals would feel more able to participate in group based sessions.

Consideration had been given to the potential for an all age service. This would bring 
benefits in relation to transition but would pose a challenge for maintaining linkages 
with wider mental health services and it was believed that retaining two providers 
supported direct connectivity between CAMHs and AMHs and ensured specialist 
input from both services.

The importance of addressing the current waiting list had been emphasised to 
GMMH and there was an expectation that appropriate staffing levels would be in 
place by the end of September. 

The committee considered it would be prudent for contract payments to be made 
conditional upon specified outcomes.

The committee acknowledged the importance of this service in saving lives and 
confirmed that it would continue to consider business cases on the basis of the 
committee’s priorities.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee agreed option 3 of the Adult 
Community Eating Disorders business case as follows:

Increase capacity in the service to meet demand and align with CYP 
timescales (Refer to Treatment Time urgent in one week or less, standard in 
four weeks or less). Costs for this option are £383,902 to meet 120 referrals 
and 110 treatment starts. This includes £110,000 current funding and therefore 
the additional ask is £273,902 recurrently. These costs are indicative costs for 
approval and represent the maximum ask. The final financial ask is subject to 
negotiation with GMMH. 

4. Items for Assurance

a) Finance Report

DW presented an in-year update in relation to the financial performance of the 
adults’ element of the Integrated Fund at month 10. Based on month 10 information, 
the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund was currently forecasting to overspend by 
approximately £2.7m. This represented an improvement of approximately £0.2m 
from the last finance report presented to the committee in February. 

In relation to the Better Care Fund, DW confirmed that there had been some 
improvement from November to December in reported performance against locally 

Page 3



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 4 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

defined thresholds, but some significant challenges remained as 18 out of 61 
reportable measures did not achieve target in December. Commissioners and 
providers had met recently to review the suite of performance measures, with a view 
to rationalising them, and further information would be brought to the next ACC 
meeting.

ACTION: In relation to the table in Appendix 1, DW agreed to clarify Year to 
Date and Annual Variance figures relating to ‘other’ (row 6).

ACTION: DW agreed to bring an update on the findings of the working group 
which had been looking at overspend in Learning Disabilities to the next 
meeting.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the in-year and forecast position 
for the Adults’ Integrated Fund for 2019/20.

5. Items for Information

a) Integrated Community Based Care Strategy Group Update

HG and HR presented an update on the delivery of the Integrated Community Based 
Care strategic work programme for the months August 2019 to January 2020 and 
responded to questions and observations from members of the committee.

 Service Updates included

SWEAP – the Salford Wide Extended Access Pilot, the Musculoskeletal Single Point 
of Referral model, Multi-Disciplinary Groups (MDG), Community Heart Failure 
Service, Community Anti-coagulation Services, Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinic 
(RACPC), Community Cardiology Clinics and Primary care Diagnostic Unit (PCDU).

The Primary Care Commissioning Committee would make the decision going 
forwards on SWEAP when the pilot concluded at the end of the financial year. It was 
hoped that extended access would continue and that a new specification would be in 
place by the middle of 2020/21.

The committee welcomed the ongoing commitment to the Community Heart Failure 
Service but acknowledged that providing additional consultant capacity in one 
service area could take it away from another.

Community Cardiology Clinics were set up in practices which had the physical space 
to accommodate them but all GP practices had access to the services provided 
within these clinics.

Community Anti-coagulation Services provided a much better patient experience, 
allowing patients to self-test rather than having to attend traditional ‘warfarin clinics’.

Page 4



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 5 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

 Innovation Fund projects included

LC20-18 Hear to Care, 16-Kafoodle, WC05-Decide Dermatology, LC06-18 
Dysphagia, Empower You, 160-Oviva.

Kafoodie had come to an end and none of the care homes had expressed an interest 
in taking up the package going forwards, However, much of the positive learning 
from the pilot had now been taken forward into the Care Home Improvement work.

 Homeless Practice Redesign

 Integrated Care Transformation Programme Board

 Greater Manchester Any Qualified Provider (AQP) Report

 Salford Standard

 Primary Care Workforce Strategy Update

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the comprehensive update on 
the delivery of the Integrated Community Based Care strategic work 
programme.

b) Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Board Update

ST provided an update on the work programmes relating to Urgent & Emergency 
Care and performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards and 
responded to questions and observations from the committee.

The number of patients presenting at SRFT Accident and Emergency (A&E) in 
2019/20 to date had increased to 118,000 from 89,000 in the same period in 
2018/19. Although levels of acuity had increased, the committee was mindful of a 
number of possible reasons for such a large increase, including significant 
population growth in the city and SRFT having been designated as the major trauma 
centre for GM. Inevitably though, A&E was not always the most appropriate place for 
patients and the ongoing challenge was to identify ways to direct, support and assist 
people to get to what was the appropriate place for them at the right time.

The committee noted that SRFT’s performance had improved slightly in spite of such 
challenges and deserved to be congratulated accordingly. At the same time though it 
was acknowledged that the locality as a whole had done a huge amount of work 
together which had in itself contributed to this improvement.

Page 5



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 6 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

ST confirmed that the GM Health and Social Care Partnership continued to work 
closely with North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) to improve performance against 
the national Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) targets and meetings were 
being held on a monthly basis to identify issues and opportunities for improving 
performance. Negotiations were currently underway about contract renewal and 
Salford commissioners were feeding into the negotiations via the GM Partnership.

The committee considered that closer scrutiny of the performance of NWAS could be 
facilitated formally by a Scrutiny Panel. As the service was regional it was agreed 
that it would be preferable for any such review to be conducted at a regional level 
and officers would clarify how this could best be taken forward to the GM Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the comprehensive update and 
asked for the performance of the North West Ambulance Service to be 
proposed to the GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for a scrutiny review.

ACTION: CAE.

6.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee agreed that, under Section 100a(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public should be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it included the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as specified in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Act.

c) Improving Specialist Care Programme Progress Update

The ACC was provided with an update on the Greater Manchester Improving 
Specialist Care (ISC) Programme and an outline of the next steps in relation to a 
number of business cases.

The Adult’s Commissioning Committee noted the update on the Greater 
Manchester Improving Specialist Care Programme.

7. RE-ADMITTANCE OF THE PUBLIC

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

a) Care Home Improvement Work

The committee was delighted to hear that Salford had been nominated for a national 
award for its care home improvement work and looked forward to learning the results 
in due course.

Page 6



ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE Page 7 of 7
11 MARCH 2020

b) Salford Women’s Centre

GR had been informed via a letter to the City Mayor that Salford Women’s Centre 
was having difficulty in meeting increased demand for counselling services. Many of 
the women who tried to access the service were vulnerable and many were, or had 
been, victims of domestic abuse.

It was not known who commissioned this service and Judd Skelton and Claire Mayo 
would be asked to look into this and the referral process.

ACTION: Judd Skelton and Clare Mayo to identify how Salford Women’s 
Centre was commissioned and the referral process.

c) Adult Public Health Services

GMcL presented an update on Adult Public Health Services and health trends in 
Salford. She also outlined Salford’s current preparedness and work that was 
underway in the COVID-19 Locality Planning Group which included a number of draft 
workstreams:

* COV19 Coordinating hub  
          * Community and social care /care homes/ primary care 
          * Communications
          * Schools, Education And Early Years Settings
          * Vulnerable populations  
          * City wide essential services / workforces  

The committee thanked GmCl for the update.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Adults Commissioning Committee

Part 1

Agenda item number: 4

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please bold) 

13th May 2020 (Date of meeting)

Report of: Head of Service Improvement (ICS)

Date of paper: 1st April 2020

Subject: Empower You

In case of query please contact: Tori Quinn – tori.quinn@nhs.net

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

X

Children’s and Maternity Services: 

Primary Care: 

Enabling Transformation: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Purpose of paper: 

A paper setting out an overview of the Empower You service developed 
by Unlimited Potential and proposing commissioning of this service for a 
period of 5 years was presented to the CCG’s Service and Finance Group 
on the 3rd March 2020.  

The Service and Finance Group were supportive of the continuation of 
this service, subject to the resolution of a couple of queries which have 
now been settled.

Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to confirm the decision of 
the Service and Finance Group.

Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group?

Empower You aims to improve the health 
and well-being of disabled people in Salford 
by increasing access to mainstream 
physical activity provision.

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

The work of Empower You to date has 
shown the barriers to physical activity faced 
by disabled people. Without this service or 
something equivalent that helps disabled 
people overcome these barriers, disabled 
people in Salford will continue to face 
inequitable access to physical activity and 
the health risks associated with an inactive 
lifestyle. Commissioning of Empower You 
or an alternative service would mitigate 
these risks.

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

None. Empower You aims to reduce the 
health and social inequalities faced by local 
disabled people. Working with disabled 
people to identify activities of interest, whilst 
upskilling mainstream providers to enable 
inclusive participation.

Page 10



Question Answer

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

The risk of the development of long term 
conditions among disabled people due to 
the current low level of physical activity 
amongst them.

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

None

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

Empower You aims to reduce the high 
demand of disabled people accessing 
specialist services and interventions  
offered by NHS and social care services 
through reducing levels of physical inactivity 
for disabled people in Salford.

Footnote:

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 11



  

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

 Local disabled people have co-
produced the programme since 2016.

Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

 Engagement with clinicians and social 
work staff in the development of the 
programme.  Dr Vannamalar 
Selvaraasan was GP Clinical Lead on 
the original business case in 2018.

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?

 The programme directly links to 
strategic aims of Salford CCG’s 
Social Value Strategy 2019-2021, 
especially its social and economic 
objectives.

P
age 12



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 

 Empower You reduces health 
inequalities with disabled people.

Legal advice sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

 Proposal presented to ICBC CG on 
19 November 2019.

Proposal present to Service and 
Finance Group on 3rd March 2020.

ICBC CG supported the 
commissioning of Empower 
You.

Service and Finance Group 
were supportive of this 
service continuing but had 
some questions about 
existing services we 
commission and the terms of 
the proposed contract they 
wished to be answered – 

P
age 13



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

these have now been 
resolved.

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work

P
age 14



  

Empower You

1. Executive summary
1.1 Empower You is a short-term intensive programme enabling disabled people and 

those around them to lead active lifestyles. This is achieved through making existing 
community provision more accessible. The service upskills community based staff 
and local activity providers enabling mainstream provision to better meet the needs 
of disabled people.

1.2 Empower You has evidenced outcomes through measuring physical health scores 
before and after the programme and through use of the Outcomes Star Tool before 
and after the programme. The outcomes showed that while the numbers of people 
were small and the activity taken over a short period of time some small physical 
improvements and well-being improvements were seen.

1.3 The paper setting out the background of Empower You was supported by the 
Integrated Community Based Care Commissioning Group in November 2019 and 
then presented to the Service and Finance Group (SFG) in March 2020. The initial 
request was to commission Empower You for a period of five years, at the cost of 
£83,468 (plus VAT if applicable) per year, with inflationary uplifts. The total for the 
five-year contract period would be £417,340.  

1.4 SFG was supportive of Empower You but asked questions concerning existing 
services commissioned and the contract period requested. This paper answers the 
questions raised by SFG and their proposal for a contract period of three years with 
the option for +1 and +1year.

1.5 Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to note the content of this report and 
ratify the decision of SFG to commission Empower You for a period of three years 
with the option of +1 and +1 year subject to agreement of KPIs and monitoring 
framework.

Page 15



  

2. Introduction / Background
2.1 Empower You was an Innovation Fund project, developed and delivered by 

Unlimited Potential, that provided short-term intensive programmes with an exercise 
professional to support disabled people to overcome barriers to physical activity and 
lead more active lives.

2.2 Empower You received national recognition, and a full business case for sustaining it 
was presented to the Integrated Community Based Care Commissioning Group 
(ICBCCG) on 29th May 2018. The business case set out the need for the service and 
described the barriers faced by people with physical and sensory disabilities and 
people with learning disabilities when accessing mainstream activities. Whilst the 
group recognised the project had delivered some good outcomes and valued what 
the project achieved the delivery model only permitted a small number of disabled 
people to benefit from this initiative. The group felt that they could not fund the 
service but if there was a modified model that could be developed/tested to support a 
larger cohort of disabled people to increase activity in mainstream services at a lower 
cost per beneficiary then this could prove to be an investable proposition.

2.3 Since this ICBCCG decision, Unlimited Potential has tested a new group based 
approach for Empower You in both Salford and Trafford sourcing funding from a 
number of grant schemes.  Empower You tested two slightly different models, one in 
Salford and one in Trafford enabling them to determine the most effective approach.

2.4 This learning led to the development of the proposal presented to ICBCCG in 
November 2019 that addressed the concerns raised by the group when the original 
business case was presented. It is this revised model for which a commissioning 
decision is sought.

3. Empower You
3.1 Empower You is a short-term, intensive programme to make existing community 

provision more accessible, enabling disabled people, and those around them, to lead 

Page 16



  

active lifestyles.  It takes a person-centred, place-based approach and uses existing 
community assets. 

3.2 Empower You focuses on the sustainability of behaviour change into physical activity 
by disabled people, by working not only with them but also with those close to them 
(such as carers, relatives and friends) as ‘buddies’ whose own activity also increases 
as a result. This raised their awareness, confidence and ability to work alongside the 
disabled person and supports the sustainability of the disabled person’s physical 
activity, as well as their own, beyond the initial short-term programme.

3.3 At the same time, Empower You upskills community-based staff and local activity 
providers providing them with the skills, knowledge and experience to work 
effectively with disabled people, helping them learn how to adjust their provision to 
better support disabled people in physical activity. 

3.4 In doing so, Empower You enables mainstream provision to better meet the needs of 
disabled people, whilst generating and supporting the demand for these activities 
within the community. This supports mainstream agencies to take greater ownership 
and responsibility for providing accessible, inclusive activities long-term, incentivised 
by a new demographic, encouraging community engagement and improved health 
and well-being outcomes. This can contribute to a reduction in demand for both NHS 
and social care services.

3.5 Empower You serves to generate new demand for activities in the community by 
people who may not otherwise access them.  This increases the visibility of disabled 
people keeping active in mainstream environments, encouraging others to do so and 
strengthening the association between disabled people and physical activity, whilst 
incentivising mainstream providers through increased footfall and income.

4. Outcomes
4.1 The three-month follow-up survey of the 58 disabled people engaged in the group-

based approach revealed that:
- 85% continued to engage in an activity independently, or with the support of their 
carer, relative, friend, support staff or buddy, at least three months after the intensive 

Page 17



  

phase of the Empower You Programme. Those from the first cohort in Salford are 
still active ten months on. 
- The greatest factors that influenced people’s ongoing participation beyond the 
intensive phase were: enjoyment/fun; appropriate support; with others; something to 
do; and health benefits.
- The greatest factors that influenced those who dropped out of the programme or 
did not continue activity beyond the intensive phase were: other commitments; lack 
of options and they did not like the group.

4.2 Empower You evidenced outcomes through measuring physical health scores before 
and after the programme and through use of the Outcomes Star Tool before and 
after the programme.  The figures presented in the paper to ICBCCG showed that 
while the numbers of people were small and the activity undertaken over a short 
period of time some small physical improvements and well-being improvements were 
seen. In addition, comments from participants include:
- “I feel stronger now” (JC, Oakwood Academy, Salford)
- “I’ve lost weight. I can get on the bus now.” (MR, St George’s Resource Centre, 
Salford)
- “Even we’re (the staff) all conscious now. We are having a weekly weigh-in with the 
group.” (MC, St George’s Resource Centre, Salford)
- “I feel happy” (MA, St George’s Resource Centre, Salford)
- “I come here [Eccles Leisure Centre] with my mates now after college” (BH, 
Oakwood Academy, Salford)
- “He loves it. As soon as it gets to Friday, he says gym later” (CS, Imagine Act 
Succeed, Trafford)

4.3 A case study showing outcomes achieved is included as Appendix 1.

4.4 An additional benefit of Empower You found during the pilot is that the activity levels 
of support staff also increases. 

4.5 The new group based model, whilst achieving similar health and well-being 
outcomes to the one-to-one approach initially used by Empower You has seen a 
significant increase in the percentage of people who maintain their activity when 

Page 18



  

compared for the time period independent of the intervention (85% compared to 
72%). 

5. Contract Value and future of Empower You
5.1 Unlimited Potential have advised that the scale-up and mainstreaming of Empower 

You will cost £83,468 per year (plus VAT if applicable). SFG were provided with a full 
breakdown of these costs which can be provided upon request.

5.2 For this sum, Empower You will engage between 260-380 beneficiaries per year, 
based on groups of 8-12 supported over an eight-week period. This would allow two 
months each year for marketing, referral generation, reporting, initial assessments 
and other duties not involving direct interaction with clients. The cost per beneficiary 
would be £220-£321, a reduction of £684-£785 when compared to the same level of 
service for the one-to-one approach initially proposed.

5.3 SFG was asked to support the commissioning of Empower You for a period of five 
years, at the cost of £83,468 per year, with inflationary uplifts. The total for the five 
year contract period would be £417,340.

5.4 Currently, Empower You is hosted by Unlimited Potential, a Salford based social 
enterprise.  Through the development of Empower You, Beyond Empower, a 
community interest company to support disabled people to lead healthy, active lives, 
has been constituted.

5.5 With the support of Salford CCG, Unlimited Potential hopes to complete the 
incubation of Beyond Empower for a period of time with the intention for Empower 
You to permanently transfer over to Beyond Empower when appropriate, following 
due diligence. 

6. Service and Finance Group Questions and Responses
6.1 SFG were supportive of Empower You but asked questions concerning existing 

services commissioned and the terms of the contract requested.

Page 19



  

6.2 SFG requested assurance that there would not be a duplication of services if 
Empower You was commissioned. After discussions between the Service 
Improvement Team and the Integrated Commissioning Team it was agreed:

 The project would deliver benefits to people with LD/complex needs

 It delivers services that are over and above those we already commission from 
Aspire and should help to extend the scope of the current Aspire service

6.3 In addition, SFG felt that five years was longer than the usual period contracted for 
by the CCG. After discussions with the CCG finance and contracts team it was 
agreed that the proposal should be to commission Empower You for a period of 
three years with the option of +1 year and +1 year. A service specification would 
need to be agreed with outcomes focused KPIs with performance against these KPIs 
monitored. The total for the 3 year contract period would be £250,404

7. Recommendations
7.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Note the content of this report

 Ratify the decision of Service and Finance Group to commission Empower You for a 
period of three years with the option of +1 and +1 year subject to agreement of KPIs 
and monitoring framework. The total value of the 3 year contract will therefore be 
£250,404 

Tori Quinn

Head of Service Improvement (ICS)

N.B This paper was compiled by Hilary Rothwell prior to her retirement from the CCG. The 
Service Improvement Team would like to thank Hilary for her hard work and dedication to 
the people of Salford over a number of years.

Page 20



  

Appendix 1
Case Study- Aspire Active

Empower You first engaged with St. George’s Resource Centre in September 2018. The centre 
had worked to establish a health and well-being group made up of people accessing St. George’s 
services. Despite setting up this group, due to staff having little knowledge and training around 
how to support health and well-being, there wasn’t much done with the group with people 
explaining it was ‘boring’. Staff also felt that cuts to the social care sector were limiting the amount 
and quality of activities they could provide.

On engaging with Empower You, a session 
was organised to help the group better 
understand their current health. This session 
involved everyone in the group having their 
health check and completing the Outcome 
Star. The second session involved identifying 
of interest to the group. These groups 
included: a walking group, a gym and swim 
group and an allotment group.

Empower You supported the group weekly to 
visit Salford’s Wetlands, where the group would 
walk for an hour. The group were supported to 
integrate into an existing

Health Improvement Team walking group and Mobile Wetland was formed. Empower You 
supported partnership working between Aspire and Salford Community Leisure. It was agreed 
that in return for Salford Community Leisure providing discounted passes for the group to 
access gym and swim sessions, Aspire were to offer communication training to provide 
Salford Community Leisure staff with the expertise to better support the group.
Aspire Active Gym and Swim sessions were formed. Aspire did not have the funds to commit to 
an allotment project. To allow
the group to draw down funds, 
Empower You supported the 
constitution of St. George’s All 
Sorts to support the on-going 
health and well-being of St.
George’s Resource Centre through 
increasing health promotion 
activities. This enabled the group to 
access grant funding. Empower You 
supported the development of a 
proposal to be submitted to Salford 
CVS Grow Well Fund. The 

Page 21



  

application was successful and St. 
George’s Grows allotment group was 
formed. The group are supported by 
Lower Kersal Young Peoples and 
Community Group with the aim to 
develop the skills maintain their own 
allotment independently. The 
accessible allotment on Kersal 
Allotments is currently underused. 
The group are keen to take this on.

All activities are still attended six- 
months after the Empower You 
programme. The group are much 
more active and engaged in their 
communities. They are getting out of 
the day centre and interacting with 
groups they otherwise would not 
have; gym goers; walking group 
members and other allotment users 
specifically. The group have seen 
health benefits with one person 
explaining that the weight loss 
achieved through increasing

physical activity has enabled him to access Ring and Ride transport service which has a weight 
limit, as well as use the hoist to access the swimming pool at Broughton Leisure Centre. Staff 
are also more confident in adopting a community-based approach to support the health and 
well-being of those they support as well as establishing more sustainable activities.

Page 22



1

Salford City Council Constitution.

Published in Accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 

2012 (“the Regulations”)

Part 4 Section B Access to Information Procedure Rules

General Exception

Notice is given to the public the reasons why compliance with the requirements for 
publicity in connection with key decisions are impracticable.

In relation to the making of decision under General Exception; Salford City Council’s 
Constitution states:-

17.1      Subject to Rule 18 (special urgency), where the publication of the intention   
              to make a key decision under Rule 16 is impracticable, the decision may still 

be made, but only if:

a) the Monitoring Officer has informed each Member of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board (if the decision is one within the remit of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Board) or otherwise each member of the relevant Scrutiny 
Panel, by notice in writing of the matter about which the decision is to 
be made;

b) the Monitoring Officer has made a copy of that notice available to the 
public at the offices of the Council at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley 
Road, Swinton, Salford, M27 5DA and published it on the council’s 
website; and 

c) at least 5 clear days have elapsed since the Monitoring Officer 
complied with (a) and (b). 

17.2 As soon as reasonably practicable after the Monitoring Officer has complied 
with Rule 17.1(a) and (b), they must make available at the Council’s offices 
at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, Salford, M27 5DA a notice 
setting out the reasons why compliance with Rule 16 is impracticable and 
publish that notice on the Council’s website.

Title: Health Living Centres
Purpose: To endorse the recommendation by Salford Clinical 

Commissioning Group’s Service and Finance Group that the 
contracts for three Healthy Living Centres in Salford should be 
extended for a period of 12 months, with an optional extension 
of an additional 12 months.

Decision-Maker: Adults’ Commissioning Committee

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



2

Contact: Karen Proctor 0161 212 5654

Notice Published: 4 May 2020
Decision Date: 13 May 2020

Reasons why 
impracticable to 
give 28 days clear 
public notice:

At the time a paper was brought for discussion to the Adults’ 
Commissioning Committee meeting in February, it was 
understood that the value of the CCG led Health Living 
Centres contract exceeded the committee’s decision making 
threshold of £1m and that the formal decision would therefore 
need to be approved by the CCG’s Governing Body.

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee were supportive of the 
recommendation to extend the contracts.

Subsequent to that meeting, recent enquiries on the 
governance and delegated authority arrangements have 
identified that each of the three Healthy Living Centres is 
subject to a separate contract, the value of each of which falls 
within the Adult Commissioning Committee’s delegated 
spending authority. It is therefore appropriate for the Adults’ 
Commissioning Committee to approve the extension to the 
three contracts.

Key officers have inevitably been urgently diverted onto 
matters relating to the Covid-19 pandemic and have not been 
in a position to bring this forward before now.

Page 24



ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information 

6th May 2020 

Report of: Karen Proctor

Date of Paper: 13th April 2020

Subject: Healthy Living Centres’ Update

In case of query 
Please contact:

Phillip Kemp
Head of Finance and Contracting
phillip.kemp@nhs.net 

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)
Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care

 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

This is a follow up from the Adults Commissioning Committee paper presented in February 
2020 to the Adult Commissioning Group, which gave an update on commissioning of 
Healthy Living Centres and the recommendation to extend the contract arrangements for 1 
year (to 31/03/21), with an option for a further 1 year (to 31/03/22).

Since the paper was discussed, further clarity has been provided on the governance for the 
decision making and also takes into account the current COVID-19 situation.

This paper now seeks formal ACC approval of the extension of the contracts for Salford’s 
Healthy Living Centres   as previously recommended at the committee’s meeting in 
February 2020.

Page 25

mailto:phillip.kemp@nhs.net


Healthy Living Centres

1. Executive Summary

This is a follow up from the Adults Commissioning Committee paper presented in February 
2020 to the Adult Commissioning Group, which gave an update on commissioning of 
Healthy Living Centres and the recommendation to extend the contract arrangements for 1 
year (to 31/03/21), with an option for a further 1 year (to 31/03/22).

The paper clarifies governance arrangements and delegated limits for the decision to 
extend and confirms the subsequent decision to extend as per the recommendation 
previously supported by Adults Commissioning Committee. 

This paper now seeks formal ACC approval of the extension of the contracts for Salford’s 
Healthy Living Centres, as previously recommended in February 2020.

2. Background

1.1. Salford CCG commission 3 Healthy Living Centres (HLCs) in Salford:

 Social Adventures (The Angel)
 Langworthy Cornerstone Association (Langworthy Cornerstone) 
 Big Life (Energise) 

The total annual value of these three contracts is £1,037,557 in 2019/20 of which 
£379,192 is a contribution to rent / estates (see Table 1). The contracts were due to 
expire on 31st March 2020 and therefore a decision around future commissioning 
was required.

Table 1: HLC Contract Values 2019/20
Healthy Living Centre 
Provider

Contract 
Value

CV
%

Rent/Estate 
Contributio

n

Residual 
Contract 

Value

RCV
%

Social Adventures £510,476 49% £145,527 £364,949 55%
Langworthy 
Cornerstone 
Association

£346,984 33% £192,648 £154,336 23%

Big Life £180,097 17% £41,017 £139,080 21%
Total £1,037,557 £379,192 £658,365

1.2. Detailed papers were presented to the Service and Finance Group (SFG) which 
considered a review of the three HLCs contracts on 7th January. These can be 
shared upon request. The group had previously received reports/papers on a 
number of other related services and initiatives and concluded that a clearer, 
strategic approach was required as significant investments in the VSCE have 
developed in a piece meal, opportunistic manner. The group was supportive of 
continued investment in HLCs but was uncomfortable extending the current 

Page 26



arrangements for a long time in the absence of that clearer, strategic approach. The 
group therefore recommended to extend the current HLC contracts for one year (with 
the potential for a second year) in order to align with the wider VCSE Strategy 
development and implementation.

1.3. Following this an update on HLCs and the recommendation from SFG was reported 
to the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC) in February 2020 as part of a wider 
adults commissioning update (refer to appendix 1). At the time it was understood that 
due to the value of the contract that ACC didn’t have the delegated authority to 
extend these contracts, therefore the ask of ACC was to support the SFG 
recommendation of a one year extension with an option for a further one year 
extension. ACC overall agreed with the recommendation to extend (refer to appendix 
1 for minutes).

3. Update

1.1. Since ACC, both Salford CCG and Salford City Council have further enquired and 
gained clarity on the governance arrangements and delegated authority for a 
decision around extension of the HLCs as recommended in the previous papers 
discussed at SFG and ACC.

1.2. It has been confirmed by Salford CCG’s Chief Accountable Officer, that these are 
classified as 3 separate contracts and therefore 3 separate decisions are required 
from a contract, procurement and finance perspective. Also, it was confirmed that the 
Integrated Commissioning delegated limits are based on the annual contract value 
not the total value over the contract period. This was confirmed at the point when the 
joint committees were setup in April 2019. As a result, the decision to extend the 3 
separate Healthy Living Centres was within the delegated limit of up to £1m of the 
ACC.

1.3. Due to the fact that ACC had already discussed the future commissioning 
arrangements of the 3 healthy living centres and ACC supported the 
recommendation to extend the contracts by 1 year (to 31/03/21) with a further 1 year 
extension option (to 31/03/22) to allow for a wider strategic review of the overall 
investment in the VCSE sector in Salford, the 3 contracts were extended. 

1.4. This decision to extend was further implicated by the current COVID-19 situation 
where all resources were moved to the response to this situation and also with the 
clear mandate to not destabilise local providers.

1.5. This paper now seeks formal ACC approval of the extension of the contracts for 
Salford’s Healthy Living Centres, as previously recommended in February 2020. 

Phillip Kemp
Head of Finance and Contracting 

Page 27



Appendix 1 - Adult Commissioning Committee - February 20

Extract from the Papers of the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (12 Feb 2020)

2.6 Renewal of Healthy Living Centres Contracts

Salford CCG and City Council have together, with Salford’s Voluntary, Community & Social
Enterprises (VCSE) sector, developed a strategy to describe the position and role of the
VCSE sector in Salford in terms of how it supports and benefits local people, delivers
services and influences city-wide policy and strategy. Amongst the intended outcomes is a
consistent approach to operational and strategic thinking.

The commissioning of the Healthy Living Centres (HLCs) in Salford stretches back to at 
least 2011. In recent years work has been completed to align the contracts for the three 
HLCs so they had a single end date and were commissioned to the same specification. As 
part of this work a new outcomes framework was agreed and implemented in 2017/18. The 
current contract end date is 31 March 2020.

The HLCs are located amongst some of Salford’s most deprived communities: The Angel
Centre and Langworthy Cornerstone in the Ordsall and Claremont area and The Energise
Centre in Broughton. They are a hub for what happens and develops locally, responsive to
local need. People, groups, communities are stakeholders in how HLCs are developed and
in influencing what they do. Users of HLC services have, therefore, predominantly been 
from the local neighbourhoods.

The Energise HLC is part of the Big Life Group which comprises a social enterprise called
the Big Life Company, a Multi-Academy Trust called Big Life Schools and three charities.
Langworthy Cornerstone HLC is run by the Langworthy Cornerstone Association (LCA), a
registered charity and company limited by guarantee. The Angel Centre is run by Social
AdVentures, a Community Benefit Society.

The contracts for HLC’s set out the requirements to deliver health and wellbeing activities for
the benefit of local communities. HLCs build knowledge, skills, behaviour change and
capacity to make a difference to health and wellbeing in that area. The HLCs also provide
other activities with funding through other grants and covering areas such as small business
support and skills training.

HLCs act as community hubs for a number of VCSE sector organisations to provide health
and wellbeing and also provide space for commissioned health and social care service
provision in the community.

A few of the outcomes delivered by the three HLCs in 2018/19 include:

- 169% social value add against total contract value in 2018/19 (£1,753,601 against
£1,037557)

- 1,891 people from vulnerable groups participating in HLC programmes
- 1,302 people participating in physical activity programmes directly provided by the HLCs
- 1,065 people participating in programmes directly provided by HLCs that aim to achieve

a weight loss
- 2,890 people participating in interventions directly provided by HLCs focusing on healthy

Page 28



Eating
- 739 people with a diagnosed long term condition attending HLC directly provided

interventions / activities designed to support self-management
- 1,214 smokers engaged in an intervention
- 91 smokers achieved a quit
- 13 volunteers went on to find paid work

The contract values for the HLCs vary significantly; this appears to largely be a historical
variation from when each centre was commissioned individually. The contract value for each
HLC includes a contribution to rent/estates costs; these are in effect pass-through costs with
rents paid to NHS Property Services (NHSPS) or Community Health Partnerships (CHP). It
is assumed that these costs would fall to the integrated fund if the buildings were not
occupied.

The total annual value of these three contracts is £1,037,557 in 2019/20 of which £379,192
is a contribution to rent / estates.

The Service and Finance Group considered a review of the three HLCs contracts on 7
January. The group had previously received reports/papers on a number of other services
and initiatives and concluded that a clearer, strategic approach was required as significant
investments in the VSCE have developed in a piece meal, opportunistic manner. The group
was supportive of continued investment In HLCs but was uncomfortable extending the
current arrangements for a long time in the absence of that clearer, strategic approach. The
group therefore recommended to extend the current HLC contracts for one year (with the
potential for a second year) in order to align with the wider VCSE Strategy development and
implementation.

Officers are considering how to progress this recommendation through the governance of
the integrated commissioning arrangement for formal decision(s).

Extract from the Minutes of the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (12 Feb 2020)

HG confirmed that the Health Living Centres were hubs for a wide variety of health and 
wellbeing activities. The contracts for the three centres were due to expire at the end of the 
current financial year. There was strong evidence of the value of the activities provided and 
the Service and Finance Group was supportive of continued investment but recommended 
that an extension of one year, with the potential for a second year, would be appropriate at 
this stage to allow the wider VCSE strategy to be developed and implemented.

As the total value of the contracts exceeded the decision-making authority of the 
commissioning committees and the contracts were currently managed by the CCG, the 
decision to extend would be taken by the CCG Governing Body.

Members of the ACC were highly complimentary of the services and activities provided from 
these centres and concurred with the SAFG’s recommendation that an extension should be 
granted. This would allow a more strategic approach to be adopted, including reviewing the 
potential connectivity between the Healthy Living Centres, the Gateways and the 
Neighbourhood model.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

ADULTS’ COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE (ACC) 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)  

13th May 2020 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer

Date of Paper: 4th May 2020

Subject: Finance Report

In case of query 
Please contact:

David Warhurst, Chief Finance Officer
0161 212 6159

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
 Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care

 Enabling Transformation
Purpose of Paper:                                   

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with:

 The 2019/20 financial outturn of the Integrated Fund for Adult services (Section 3).

 An update on the additional funding approved for Adult Social Care, including 
benefits realisation, the final spend position and approval from the national team on 
the Better Care Fund (BCF) (Sections 4 and 5).

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 

                                                          

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

Ensuring public funding is spent appropriately.  
Achieving Value for Money, ensuring that 
funding is available to protect core services.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?
 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to account 
for performance.

WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

N/A

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

N/A

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

N/A

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

N/A

Footnote:

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no 
amendments are possible.

Page 32



                                      
Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)

X

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?
Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 

X

Legal Advice Sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 33



                                      
Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)

Finance Report – 13th May 2020

1. Executive Summary

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with the final 
position in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated 
Fund for 2019/20.

The year-end outturn for the fund was a c£3.0m overspend, which represents a c£0.3m 
deterioration from the last finance report to February’s ACC.

Section 2 highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the adults’ 
Integrated Fund.  The key areas that resulted in the outturn are highlighted below:

 Acute Services £4.6m fund overspend – This overspend is the combination of the 
various Acute Services elements of the Integrated fund. The main pressures relate to 
an increase in both the number and cost of unplanned admissions when compared to 
plan and also the collective aim to reduce waiting lists for Salford residents.

 Adult Social Care (ASC) £2.8m fund overspend – The actual overspend on ASC for 
2019/20 is £6.1m, but the risk share agreed results in Salford Royal NHS Foundation 
Trust (SRFT) contributing £3.3m partially offsetting the £6.1m overspend, with the 
remaining £2.8m being a pressure on the pool.  

 Committed Developments (£3.3m) underspend – The pressures above are partially 
offset by slippages and the release of funding from committed developments.

The deterioration of c£0.3m position, relates almost entirely to a reporting issue regarding 
Mental health ISRs, with a process put in place to resolve the issue going forward. 

Section 3 and 4, highlights the impact the COVID pandemic has had, with both the 
working group reviewing overspend in Adult Social Care (ASC) and reporting against the 
Better Care Fund standards being stood down.

Section 5 briefly updates on COVID costs to the end of March. These costs are not 
currently being managed through this integrated fund and consequently don’t form part of 
the overspend. 

ACC is asked to note the final position of the Adult’s Integrated Fund for 2019/20.

Page 34



                                      
2. 2019/20 In Year Monitoring

2.1 This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 
the final position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2019/20).  The appendices contain a lot of detail and are appended to give members 
a more thorough understanding of the scope of the Integrated Fund.  There are 
explanatory notes included in the appendices which hopefully explain the key 
messages contained within them.

2.2 This finance report is based on information up to the end of March 2020.  A detailed 
analysis of the position for each of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund is 
shown in Appendices One to Six.

2.3 The Service and Finance Group (SFG) haven’t reviewed the budgets in detail as 
normal due to the current COVID-19 situation reporting requirements have been 
reduced.  The final position shows expenditure overspent by £3.5m, however this is 
offset by the over achievement on customer and client receipts by £0.5m in 2019/20, 
therefore the final position is an overspend of £3.0m, as shown in Table 1 below.  

Table 1: 2019/20 Financial Summary

YTD 
Budget

 YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s Notes

TOTAL FUNDING £397,104 £397,604 £500 £397,104 £397,604 £500 £500 - 

Adult Social Care £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £2,800 - See Appendix 1
Acute Services £86,079 £87,875 £1,796 £86,079 £87,875 £1,796 £1,951 -£155 See Appendix 2
Community Services £29,013 £28,667 -£346 £29,013 £28,667 -£346 -£346 - See Appendix 3

TOTAL - ICO £208,732 £212,982 £4,250 £208,732 £212,982 £4,250 £4,405 -£155

Acute Services £26,560 £27,199 £639 £26,560 £27,199 £639 £593 £46
Adult Social Care £3,758 £3,634 -£124 £3,758 £3,634 -£124 -£124 -
Adult Social Care - Capital £3,085 £3,085 - £3,085 £3,085 - - -
Community Assets/ Voluntary Sector £1,853 £1,851 -£2 £1,853 £1,851 -£2 -£2 -
Community Services £2,461 £2,499 £38 £2,461 £2,499 £38 £113 -£75
Continuing Health Care & Funded Nursing Care £6,675 £6,420 -£255 £6,675 £6,420 -£255 -£210 -£45
Mental Health Services - NHS £35,714 £35,717 £3 £35,714 £35,717 £3 -£12 £15
Mental Health Services - Private & Voluntary Sector £7,671 £7,711 £39 £7,671 £7,711 £39 -£322 £361
Public Health Services £8,445 £8,380 -£65 £8,445 £8,380 -£65 -£65 -

TOTAL - Non ICO £96,222 £96,496 £274 £96,222 £96,496 £274 -£28 £302 See Appendix 4

Acute Services £77,134 £79,340 £2,206 £77,134 £79,340 £2,206 £2,064 £142
Ambulance Services £10,268 £10,277 £9 £10,268 £10,277 £9 £18 -£9
Community Services £55 £55 - £55 £55 - - -
NHS 111 £752 £745 -£7 £752 £745 -£7 -£3 -£4
Termination of Pregnancies £628 £683 £55 £628 £683 £55 £61 -£5

TOTAL - Aligned £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £2,140 £123 See Appendix 5

Committed Developments £3,313 £33 -£3,280 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,280 -

TOTAL - Committed Developments £3,313 £33 -£3,280 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,280 - See Appendix 6

TOTAL EXPENDITIURE £397,104 £400,611 £3,507 £397,104 £400,611 £3,507 £3,237 £270

Over/(Under) Spend - £3,007 £3,007 - £3,007 £3,007 £2,737 £270

£'000's %
£2,376 79% £2,162 £214

£632 21% £575 £57
£3,007 100% £2,737 £270

2019/20 Monitoring

Description
CCG Element of Over/(Under) Spend

Council Element of Over/(Under) Spend
Grand Total

Previous Riskshare

Page 35



                                      

The main reasons for the under and overspends against each of the sections are:

2.4.1 ICO Adult Social Care (ASC) Services (Appendix 1):  These services overspent by 
£6.1m in 2019/20.  This is in line with the last report to this committee. 

For 2019/20 a risk share has been agreed between commissioners and Salford 
Royal (SRFT) in relation to ASC spend only.  Under the terms of the risk share, 
SRFT will pick up over £3m of this overspend and the financial risk to the Integrated 
Fund is fixed at £2.8m which is illustrated in table 1.

As previously reported this represents a £2.4m worsening of position when compared 
to 2018/19. More detail on this can be found in the appendix.  However this has been 
offset by the releasing of funds within committed developments in 2.4.6 below. 

2.4.2 ICO Acute Hospital Services (Appendix 2):  Activity information has been received 
from SRFT relating to April 2019 to February 2020.  These services overspent by 
£1.8m for 2019/20, this is an improvement of £0.1m from the last report to this 
committee.  Further details can be found in the appendix.

2.4.3 ICO Community Services (Appendix 3):  These services underspent by £0.3m in 
2019/20.  This is in line with the last report to this committee further details can be 
found in the appendix.

2.4.4 Non ICO Services (Appendix 4):  This year there are more services within this area 
due to the expansion of the integrated fund for 2019/20.  These services overspent 
by £0.3m in 2019/20, this is a worsening of £0.3m from the last report to this 
committee.  There has been an increase in mental health placements that accounts 
for the £0.3m worsening in position.

2.4.5 Aligned Services (Appendix 5):  These services overspent by £2.2m in 2019/20, this 
is a worsening of £0.2m from the last report to this committee.  There has been an 
increase in surgical activity and spend of £0.2m. Further details can be found in the 
appendix. 

2.4.6 Committed Developments (Appendix 6):  There has been no change to the 
committed developments from the last report to this committee, further details can be 
found in the appendix.  

Page 36



                                      
3. Adult Social Care (ASC) Finance & Performance Group

3.1 The group last met in March 2020 with the main focus of this meeting being around 
the extension of the CIC and Aspire contracts with updates on progress of 
discussion.  Since this meeting took place the whole market changed and further 
discussion where had at the main SRFT contract with agreement to extend these 
contracts further in the current climate under COVID-19 as we didn’t want to lose 
provision of beds at this vital time.  

This group has now been suspended until further notice so members can focus on 
the health and social care response to the current COVID-19 pandemic.  Once the 
situation has improved the group will reform to commence the work plan.

4. Better Care Fund

4.1 Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic all reporting has been suspended until 
further notice therefore there is no update to be made to the committee from the last 
report on the better care fund and the performance of ASC.

5. COVID 19 update

5.1 As at the end of March, Salford locality had spent c. £0.4m on ASC services relating 
to managing the Pandemic. Costs for COVID will be managed outside of the current 
integrated funds partnership agreement.

5.2 The locality is currently formalising the principles and framework for the management 
of joint decisions, pooling and risk share associated with managing the pandemic. As 
part of this, consideration for approval of the framework is also being reviewed which 
will balance the need for robust governance with the urgent need to have the 
framework in place. 

6. Recommendations

6.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to:

 Note the final position of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund for 
2019/20.

 Note the process and decisions taken to date regarding managing the pandemic.

David Warhurst
Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG
4th May 2020

Page 37



                                      
Appendix 1 – ICO Adult Social Care 2019/20

Analysis of Adult Social Care By 
Client Group

YTD 
Budget

 YTD Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Learning Disabilities £29,798 £31,661 £1,864 £29,798 £31,661 £1,864 £1,864 £0
Physical Disability £21,296 £24,511 £3,214 £21,296 £24,511 £3,214 £3,214 £0
Mental Health £10,849 £11,701 £852 £10,849 £11,701 £852 £852 £0
Older People £12,890 £14,198 £1,308 £12,890 £14,198 £1,308 £1,308 £0
Sensory £815 £777 -£38 £815 £777 -£38 -£38 £0
Other £12,316 £12,211 -£105 £12,316 £12,211 -£105 -£105 £0
Care Act £3,033 £2,167 -£866 £3,033 £2,167 -£866 -£866 £0
Support Services £1,728 £1,728 -£0 £1,728 £1,728 -£0 -£0 £0
iBCF £911 £817 -£94 £911 £817 -£94 -£94 £0
SRFT Contribution £4 -£3,331 -£3,335 £4 -£3,331 -£3,335 -£3,335 £0

TOTAL £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £93,639 £96,439 £2,800 £2,800 £0

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the Adult Social Care services that are managed by the ICO 
(Salford Royal) and totals £93.6m for 2019/20.  The budget for 2019/20 was set at the 
recurrent budget value for 2018/19 plus an increase of £1.5m for cost pressures in relation to 
The Limes, Bourke Gardens, Residential and Learning Difficulties Placements.  

These services overspent by around £6.1m in 2019/20 and highlights the over spend is within 
Older People and Physical Disability (Residential Care).  This is in line with the last report to 
this committee. It is worth noting that in 2018/19 these services overspent by £5.2m taking 
into account commissioners funded £1.5m of pressures, this represents a worsening of 
position of £2.4m in 2019/20.  

Commissioners have agreed to a fixed contribution of £2.8m for this year which is in line with 
the financial risk share in place between the provider and commissioners. For clarity of the 
£6.1m pressure, SRFT will pick-up £0.5m directly leaving £5.6m that will be applied against 
the risk share agreement which is set at 50/50 for 2019/20.

Page 38



Page 9 of 13

Appendix 2 – ICO Hospital Based Services (SRFT Acute) 2019/20
Salford Royal ICO
SLAM Data 12
Reporting Month 12

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over/(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over/(under) 
performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reporting 
Month Plan 

(SLAM)

Adjusted 
Actual 

(Reporting 
Month)

Variance 
(Reporting 

Month)      
over/(under) 
performance

Annual Plan 
(SLAM)

Forecast 
Adjusted 

Actual

Forecast 
Variance  

over/(under) 
performance

% 
Performance 

to Annual 
Plan

Reported 
Previously 

to ACC
Movement

% 
Movement

A&E 60902 59557 -1,345 60902 59557 -1,345 -2% £10,956,648 £11,060,178 £103,530 £10,956,648 £11,060,178 £103,530 1% £71,903 £31,627 0%
Unplanned Admissions 16486 17065 579 16486 17065 579 4% £37,318,676 £38,789,618 £1,470,942 £37,318,676 £38,789,618 £1,470,942 4% £1,586,459 -£115,517 0%
Excess Bed Days 6186 11386 5,200 6186 11386 5,200 84% £1,577,593 £1,480,959 -£96,634 £1,577,593 £1,480,959 -£96,634 -6% -£127,202 £30,568 2%
Outpatients 86043 90234 4,191 86043 90234 4,191 5% £11,426,861 £11,991,038 £564,177 £11,426,861 £11,991,111 £564,250 5% £427,662 £136,588 1%
Daycase & Elective 11971 13152 1,181 11971 13152 1,181 10% £6,875,943 £7,287,748 £411,805 £6,875,943 £7,287,748 £411,805 6% £317,481 £94,324 1%
All Other (PbR Excluded, non activity Services) 10895 12650 1,755 10895 12650 1,755 16% £17,923,257 £17,265,847 -£657,410 £17,923,257 £17,265,774 -£657,483 -4% -£325,034 -£332,449 -2%
Grand Total 192483 204044 11,561 192483 204044 11,561 6% £86,078,978 £87,875,388 £1,796,410 £86,078,978 £87,875,388 £1,796,410 2% £1,951,269 -£154,859 0%

Year To Date Month 12 Forecast Year End Variance (Price)

Point of Delivery

Activity Price Movement in Forecast
Year To Date Month 12 Forecast Year End

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows the hospital based services that are within scope of the ICO and the Pooled budget, all relating to Salford Royal.  This 
table shows activity and spend by care setting (A&E department, unplanned admissions, planned admissions and outpatients).  

The main over performance is within Unplanned Admissions.  This has been consistently overspent all year and there is little change in position 
from the last report to this committee. Commissioners agreed a fixed and final position with Salford Royal so this position won’t change after 
year end.  

P
age 39



Page 10 of 13

Appendix 3 – ICO Community Services (SRFT Community) 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
District Nursing £8,113 £7,982 -£131 £8,113 £7,982 -£131 -£131 -
Intermediate Care £7,024 £7,024 - £7,024 £7,024 - - -
MSK £2,427 £2,402 -£25 £2,427 £2,402 -£25 -£25 -
Podiatry £2,135 £2,106 -£29 £2,135 £2,106 -£29 -£29 -
Other £815 £812 -£3 £815 £812 -£3 -£3 £0
Anticoagulation (Community) £919 £768 -£151 £919 £768 -£151 -£151 -
Adult Audiology £825 £830 £5 £825 £830 £5 £5 -£0
Palliative Care £714 £714 - £714 £714 - - -
Cardiac Rehabilitation £651 £659 £8 £651 £659 £8 £8 -£0
Community Neuro Rehab £640 £672 £32 £640 £672 £32 £32 -£0
Adult Diabetes £601 £635 £33 £601 £635 £33 £33 -£0
Continence £576 £554 -£22 £576 £554 -£22 -£22 £0
Centre of Contact £470 £470 - £470 £470 - - -
Physiotherapy Adults £460 £467 £7 £460 £467 £7 £7 -
Early Supported Discharge - Stroke £362 £362 - £362 £362 - - -
Tissue Viability £350 £332 -£17 £350 £332 -£17 -£17 -
Cardiology £279 £279 - £279 £279 - - -
Community Dietetics £242 £233 -£9 £242 £233 -£9 -£9 -
Physiotherapy - Hip & Knee £238 £154 -£84 £238 £154 -£84 -£84 -
Dermatology £164 £162 -£2 £164 £162 -£2 -£2 £0
Osteoporosis £152 £152 - £152 £152 - - -
Specialist Nursing £143 £143 - £143 £143 - - -
Orthotics £136 £177 £41 £136 £177 £41 £41 -
Smoking Cessation £134 £134 - £134 £134 - - -
Community Geriatrian £126 £126 - £126 £126 - - -
Pulmonary Rehab £124 £124 - £124 £124 - - -
Adult Speech & Language Therapy £121 £122 £1 £121 £122 £1 £1 £0
Respiritory Medicine £73 £73 - £73 £73 - - -

Total Community Services - ICO £29,013 £28,667 -£346 £29,013 £28,667 -£346 -£346 -£0

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of the adult community health services spend within the ICO contract, broken 
down by service.  These services underspent by £0.3m for 2019/20, this is in line with the last report 
to this committee.

The main underspends relate to District Nursing due to staffing vacancies under the current model of 
delivery.  Anticoagulation activity has reduced again from last year this is a result of patients’ 
medication being switched, the new medication requires fewer clinic attendances for on-going patient 
monitoring.  However this is offset though by increased costs within the prescribing budget (which is 
shown in the Primary Care Commissioning Committee Report)  

Page 40



Page 11 of 13

Appendix 4 – Non-ICO Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Drug & Alcohol Contracts £3,711 £3,696 -£15 £3,711 £3,696 -£15 -£15 -
Sexual Health Contracts £2,494 £2,444 -£50 £2,494 £2,444 -£50 -£50 -
Health Improvement Service £1,178 £1,178 - £1,178 £1,178 - - -
Healthy Living Centres £1,038 £1,038 - £1,038 £1,038 - - -
Other - Public Health £25 £25 - £25 £25 - - -

Total Public Health Contracts (Non-ICO) £8,445 £8,380 -£65 £8,445 £8,380 -£65 -£65 - 

Mental Health Service - NHS £35,646 £35,638 -£8 £35,646 £35,638 -£8 -£2 -£6
Six Degrees £1,504 £1,504 - £1,504 £1,504 - - -
St Ann's £1,168 £1,168 - £1,168 £1,168 - - -
Pendlebury House-Turning Point £866 £866 - £866 £866 - - -
Community Services - NHS £816 £911 £95 £816 £911 £95 £155 -£60
Prestwich Specialist Services £697 £697 - £697 £697 - - -
Specialist Weight  Management £653 £564 -£89 £653 £564 -£89 -£92 £3
Age UK £542 £542 - £542 £542 - - -
Community Assets £500 £500 - £500 £500 - - -
START £451 £451 - £451 £451 - - -
Carers' £378 £378 - £378 £378 - - -
Citizens Advice Bureau £289 £289 - £289 £289 - - -
Care Act £268 £270 £2 £268 £270 £2 £2 -
Broomwell Healthwatch £194 £199 £5 £194 £199 £5 £7 -£2
Stroke Association £143 £143 - £143 £143 - - -
Other £323 £291 -£32 £323 £291 -£32 -£33 £1

Total Block Contracts (Non-ICO) £44,438 £44,412 -£27 £44,438 £44,412 -£27 £37 -£64

Acute Services - NHS £21,644 £21,559 -£86 £21,644 £21,559 -£86 -£701 £615
Acute Services - Private £2,351 £2,793 £442 £2,351 £2,793 £442 £957 -£515
Continuing Care £4,208 £3,985 -£224 £4,208 £3,985 -£224 -£190 -£34
Mental Health ISRs £3,822 £3,714 -£108 £3,822 £3,714 -£108 -£432 £324
DFG Capital Grant £3,085 £3,085 - £3,085 £3,085 - - -
Non Contracted Activity £2,626 £2,922 £296 £2,626 £2,922 £296 £330 -£34
Funded Nursing Care £2,467 £2,435 -£31 £2,467 £2,435 -£31 -£20 -£11
Community Equipment Services £1,588 £1,588 - £1,588 £1,588 - - -
Any Qualified Provider (AQP) £573 £637 £64 £573 £637 £64 £65 -£1
Priory Beds £376 £385 £9 £376 £385 £9 -£3 £12
Mental Health Services - Specialist Services £315 £427 £111 £315 £427 £111 £108 £4
Practice Services Ltd £167 £134 -£33 £167 £134 -£33 -£21 -£12
Mental Health Assessments £83 £133 £50 £83 £133 £50 £29 £21
Patient Transport £33 £34 £2 £33 £34 £2 £5 -£3
Care Homes Refurbishment - -£126 -£126 - -£126 -£126 -£126 -

Total Activity Contracts (Non-ICO) £43,339 £43,704 £366 £43,339 £43,704 £366 -£0 £366

Total - Non-ICO £96,222 £96,496 £274 £96,222 £96,496 £274 -£28 £302

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all of those commissioned services that are not part of the SRFT ICO contract.  
There are new contracts within this relating to the expansion of the integrated fund for 2019/20.  These 
services have overspent by £0.3m for 2019/20.  There has been an increase in mental health 
placements due to new joint placements for 2019/20.  

Page 41



Page 12 of 13

Appendix 5 – Aligned Services 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD Actual

YTD 
Variance

Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement 
in Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Acute Services - NHS £67,001 £69,100 £2,099 £67,001 £69,100 £2,099 £2,067 £32
Acute Services - Private £10,188 £10,296 £108 £10,188 £10,296 £108 -£3 £111
Ambulance Services £10,268 £10,277 £9 £10,268 £10,277 £9 £18 -£9
NHS 111 Service £752 £745 -£7 £752 £745 -£7 -£3 -£4
Termination Of Pregnancies £628 £683 £55 £628 £683 £55 £61 -£5

Total Activity Contracts (Aligned) £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £2,140 £123

Total - Non-ICO £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £88,837 £91,100 £2,263 £2,140 £123

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows all the commissioned services that are within the aligned element of the Adult’s 
Integrated Fund.  These services cannot be legally included in a Section 75 Agreement (pooled 
budget) but these are included in Salford’s Integrated Commissioning Partnership Agreement.  
Predominantly these relate to surgical hospital activity and emergency ambulance services. Any over 
or underspend in these areas are included within the financial risk share of the Integrated Fund.

These services have overspent by £2.2m for 2019/20.  This is a worsening of £0.1m from the last 
report to this committee.  This is due to increased activity at private providers across the final period 
for 2019/20.

Page 42



Page 13 of 13

Appendix 6 – Committed Developments 2019/20

Description
YTD 

Budget
 YTD 

Actual
YTD 

Variance
Annual 
Budget

Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 
Reported 

Variance to 
ACC

Movement in 
Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Contingency - ASC £783 - -£783 £783 - -£783 -£783 -
Contingency - Living Wage Reserve - - - - - - - -
Contingency - General £1,447 - -£1,447 £1,447 - -£1,447 -£1,447 -
Contingency - LD Additional Funding £150 - -£150 £150 - -£150 -£150 -
Contingency - BCF Additional Funding £750 - -£750 £750 - -£750 -£750 -
Contingency - GM NR Complex Discharge Service £33 £33 - £33 £33 - - -
Shared Care Records £150 - -£150 £150 - -£150 -£150 -
Unidentified Savings Target - - - - - - - -

Total Committed Developments £3,313 £33 -£3,280 £3,313 £33 -£3,280 -£3,280 - 

2019/20 Monitoring

Notes on this Appendix:

This appendix shows funding (budget) that has not been transferred into contracts.  This funding has 
not been transferred across to providers as these budgets are based on estimated financial values 
and will only transfer into contracts when the actual financial values have been agreed.

 “Contingency ASC” relates to the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).  All funding relating to iBCF has 
been transferred into the ICO contract with the exception of £0.8m which was held back to offset in 
year financial pressures for Adults’ Integrated Fund.

The Adults’ Integrated Fund had a non–recurrent general contingency of £1.4m and this has been 
utilised to offset the over performance of the Adults’ Integrated Fund.  This funding was the additional 
ASC grant which was kept aside to offset overspends on ASC.

Additional funding has been given to the CCG in 2019/20 in relation to Better Care Fund (BCF) and 
specialist LD placements where they have been repatriated from NHS England (NHSE). These have 
been released to offset the ASC pressure.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 March 2020
	4 Empower You Programme - Harry Golby/Tori Quinn
	5 Healthy Living Centres - Karen Proctor/Harry Golby
	05 - Healthy Living Centre - ACC Update May 20

	6 Finance Report - David Warhurst

